# Administrative Law

# Table of Contents

ADMINISTRATIVE LAW	1
TOPIC 1: INTRODUCTION TO ADMINISTRATIVE LAW	7
CONSTITUTIONAL FUNDAMENTALS	7
Separation of Powers	
Rule of Law and Constitutionalism	
INTRODUCTION TO JUDICIAL REVIEW	
Review/Appeal Distinction	
Law/Merits distinction	
Attorney General (NSW) v Quin (1990) 170 CLR 1	
TOPIC 2: MERITS REVIEW	
PURPOSE OF MERITS REVIEW	
TYPES OF TRIBUNALS	
INDEPENDENT MERITS REVIEW TRIBUNALS	
Administrative Appeals Tribunal (AAT)	
Administrative Appeals Tribunal Act 1975 (Cth)	
Collector of Customs (NSW) v Brian Lawlor Automotive (1979) 41 FLR 3 Drake v Minister for Immigration and Ethnic Affairs (1979)	
Re Drake and Minister for Immigration and Ethnic Affairs (No 2) (1980)	
Shi v Migration Agents Registration Authority (2008) 235 CLR 286	
MZZW v Minister for Immigration and Border Protection [2015] FCAFO	C 133 14
Zhau v Minister for Immigration (2015)	14
TOPIC 3: JUDICIAL REVIEW - JURISDICTION OF COURTS	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Overview	
JUDICIAL REVIEW PATHWAYS	
JURISDICTION OF THE COURTS	
State and Territory Courts	
High Court	
Plaintiff M61/2010E v Commonwealth (2010) 243 CLR 319	
Federal Court	
Australian Broadcasting Tribunal v Bond (1990) 170 CLR 321	
Roche Products v National Drugs and Poisons Schedule Committee (20	
defined.	
General Newspapers v Telstra (1993) 117 ALR 629	
Griffith University v Tang (2005) 221 CLR 99 NEAT Domestic Trading v AWB Limited (2003) 216 CLR 277	
Public/Private Distinction	
R v Panel on Takeovers and mergers; Executive-parte Datafin plc [1987	
defined.	11 QB 013Error. Bookmark not
Forbes v NSW Trotting Club (1979) 143 CLR 242	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Chase Oyster Bar v Hamo Industries	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Public Contracts	
Ansett Transport Industries (Operations) Pty Ltd v Cth (1977) 139 CLR	54 Error! Bookmark not defined.
TOPIC 4: ERRORS OF LAW AND FACT	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
DISTINGUISHING ERRORS OF LAW AND FACT	
ERRORS OF FACT	
Errors of Law in Fact-Finding	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Azzopardi v Tasman UEB Industries Ltd (1985) 4 NSWLR 139	
Haritos v Federal Commission for Taxation (2015) 233 FCR 315	
No Evidence	
R v Australian Stevedoring Industry Board; Ex parte Melbourne Steved	oring Co Pty Ltd (1953) 88 CLR 100 <b>Error!</b>
Bookmark not defined.	
Repatriation Commission v Holden [2014] FCA 605	Errori Bookmark not defined.

Errors when Interpreting and Applying Legislation	Error! Bookmark not definedError! Bookmark not definedError! Bookmark not definedERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
TOPIC 5: STANDING	EDDODI DOOKMADK NOT DECINED
STANDING	
Australian Institute of Marine and Power Engineers v Secretary, Departm  Bookmark not defined.	
THE SPECIAL INTEREST TEST	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Australian Conservation Foundation Incorporated v Commonwealth of A Bookmark not defined.	
Onus v Alcoa of Australia (1981) 149 CLR 27	
LIBERALISATION OF STANDING AND ITS LIMITS  Bateman's Bay Local Aboriginal Land Council v The Aboriginal Community	y Benefit Fund Pty Ltd 91998) 194 CLR 247
United States Tobacco Co v Minister for Consumer Affairs (1988) 20 FCR	
North Coast Environmental Council v Minister for Resources (No 2) (1994 defined.	
Right to Life Association (NSW) v Secretary, Commonwealth Department FCR 50	
Argos Pty v Corbell, Minister for the Environment and Sustainable Develo <b>Bookmark not defined.</b>	
STATUTORY REFORM	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
INTERVENTION AND FRIENDS OF THE COURT	
Roadshow Films v iiNet Ltd (2011) 248 CLR 37	
TOPIC 6: JUDICIAL REVIEW OF RULE-MAKING	
INTERPRETATION	
Shanahan v Scott (1957) 96 CLR 245 Swan Hill Corporation v Bradbury (1937) 56 CLR 746	
Power to prohibit	
Foley v Padley (1984) 154 CLR 349	
THE PRINCIPLE OF LEGALITY AND FUNDAMENTAL VALUES	
Evans v New South Wales (2008) 168 FCR 576	
THE METHOD/PURPOSE DISTINCTION	
Utah Construction & Engineering Pty Ltd v Pataky [1966] AC 629	
Paull v Munday (1976) 50 ALJR 551	
Attorney-General (SA) v Corporation of the City of Adelaide (2013) 249 C	ILR 1 Error! Bookmark not defined.
TOPIC 7: PROCEDURAL GROUNDS OF JUDICIAL REVIEW	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
PROCEDURAL FAIRNESS	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Threshold Question (Implication)	
Kioa v West (1985) 159 CLR 550	
Minister for Immigration and Border Protection v WZARH (2015) 256 CLR	
Re Minister for Immigration and Multicultural Affairs; Executive p Miah (indefined.	
Plaintiff \$10/2011 v Minister for Immigration and Citizenship (2012) 246	
Implication of PF at preliminary stage	
Annetts v McCann (1990) 170 CLR 596 Ainsworth v Criminal Justice Commission (1992) 175 CLR 564	
Statute Providing for a Hearing or Right of Appeal	
State of South Australia v O'Shea (1987) 163 CLR 378	
Right otherwise excluded	
Re Minister for Immigration and Multicultural Affairs; Executive p Miah ( defined.	
Duty displaced	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Marine Hull & Liability Co Ltd v Hurford (1985) 62 ALR 253	

Disclosure: General Principles	
Minister for Immigration and Border Protection v SZSSJ [2016] HCA 29	
Disclosure of Adverse Information	
Kioa v West (1985) 159 CLR 550 Applicant VEAL of 2002 v Minister for Immigration and Multicultural and	
Applicant veal of 2002 vivilinster for infining attornand indutricultural and	
Disclosure of Critical Issues	
SZBEL v Minister for Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous Affairnot defined.	irs (2006) 228 CLR 152 Error! Bookma
Leghaei v Director-General of Security (2007) 241 ALR 141	
Disclosure of Adverse Conclusions	
Bond v Australian broadcasting Tribunal (No 2) (1988) 84 ALR 646	
Disclosure of process	
SZSSJ v Minister for Immigration and Border Protection [2015] FCAFC 12 Decision-maker does not have to be the person who holds th	
defined.	le nearing LITOI! BOOKINAIK III
White v Ryde Municipal Council [1977] 2 NSWLR 909	Frank Bookmark not define
FAI Insurances Ltd v Winneke (1982) 151 CLR 342	
Fair Hearings	
NAIS v Minister for Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous Affair defined.	
Witnesses and Cross-Examination	
O'Rourke v Miller (1985) 156 CLR 342	
Bond v Australian Broadcasting Tribunal (No 2) (1988) 84 ALR 646	
Decision-maker's failure to respond to arguments	
Reasons for decision – required by statute not procedural fair	rness Error! Bookmark ne
defined.  Public Service Board of NSW v Osmond (1986) 159 CLR 656	
HE RULE AGAINST BIAS	Error! Bookmark not define
Reasonable Apprehension of Bias	Error! Bookmark not define
Ebner v Official Trustee in Bankruptcy (2000) 205 CLR 337	
Hot Holdings v Creasey (2002) 210 CLR 438	
Prejudgment	
Minister for Immigration and Multicultural Affairs v Jia Legeng (2001) 20  defined.  Vakauta v Kellv (1989) 167 CLR 568	
Livesey v NSW Bar Association (1983) 151 CLR 288	
Extraneous Information	
Koppen v Commissioner for Community Relations (1986) 11 FCR 360	
Decision making by multi-member committees	
Isbester v Knox City Council [2015] HCA 20	
Common law principles of necessity and statutory exclusion	Error! Bookmark not define
Builders Registration Board v Rauber (1983) 47 ALR 55	
Laws v Australian Broadcasting Tribunal	
Waiver	
Vakauta v Kelly (1989) 167 CLR 568	
Effect of Breach of Procedural Fairness & Discretion of Court.	
Re Refugee Review Tribunal; Executive Parte Aala (2000) 204 CLR 82	
REACH OF STATUTORY PROCEDURES	
Common law	
Project Blue Sky Inc v Australian Broadcasting Authority (1998) 194 CLR	
Re Minister for Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs; Ex	
Re Minister for Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs; Ex Wingfoot Australia Partners Pty Ltd v Kocak (2013) 252 CLR 480	Error! Bookmark not define

defined.	55EITOT! BOOKINATK HOL
TOPIC 8: SUBSTANTIVE GROUNDS OF JUDICIAL REVIEWERRC	DR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
"CONSIDERATIONS" GROUND	
Minister for Aboriginal Affairs v Peko-Wallsend Ltd (1986) 162 CLR 24	
Minister for Immigration v SZISS (2010) 243 CLR 164	
Tickner v Chapman (1995) 57 FCR 451	
Having Regard to Irrelevant ConsiderationsErro	
Roberts v Hopwood [1925] AC 578	
Padfield v Minister of Agriculture, Fisheries & Food [1968] AC 997	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Murphyores Inco Pty Ltd v Commonwealth (1979) 136 CLR 1	Error! Bookmark not defined.
IMPROPER OR UNAUTHORISED PURPOSE	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
R v Toohey (Aboriginal Land Commissioner); Ex p. Northern Land Council (1981,	151 CLR 170 <b>Error! Bookmark</b>
not defined.	
Samrein Pty Ltd v Metropolitan Water, Sewerage & Drainage Board (1982) 41 A	LR 467 Error! Bookmark not
defined.	Formant Bankon and mark defined
Schlieske v Minister for Immigration & Ethnic Affairs (1988) 84 ALR 719	
POLICIES	
Policies must be consistent with the enabling legislationErro	
Green v Daniels (1977) 13 ALR 1	
, , , ,	iled Error! Bookmark not
defined.	
British Oxygen Co Ltd v Minister of Technology [1971] AC 610	
Rendell v Release on Licence Board (1987) 10 NSWLR 499	
REPRESENTATIONS AND ESTOPPEL	
Minister for Immigration, Local Government & Ethnic Affairs v Kurtovic (1990) 9 defined.	
Attorney-General (NSW) v Quin (1990) 170 CLR 1	
Re Minister for Immigration and Multicultural Affairs; Ex parte Lam (2003) 214 ( defined.	CLR 1 Error! Bookmark not
ACTING UNDER DICTATION	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Ministerial directions to departmental officersErro	r! Bookmark not defined.
R v Anderson; Ex parte Ipec-Air Pty Ltd (1965) 113 CLR 177	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Ansett Transport Industries (Operations) Pty Ltd v Cth (1977) 139 CLR 54	
Directions to independent bodiesErro	
Bread Manufacturers of NSW v Evans (1981) 180 CLR 404	
Rendell v Release on Licence Board (1987) 10 NSWLR 499	
Statutory DirectionsErro	
Riddell v Secretary, Department of Social Security (1993) 42 FCR 443	
UNAUTHORISED DELEGATION	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Delegation vs AgencyErro	r! Bookmark not defined.
Re Ombudsman (1979) 2 ALD 86	
Carltona Ltd v Commissioners of Works [1943] 2 All ER 560	
O'Reilly v Commissioners of State Bank of Victoria (1982) 153 CLR 1	
New South Wales Aboriginal Land Council v Minister Administering the Crown L	
(2014) 88 NSWLR 125	
WEDNESBURY UNREASONABLENESS	
Associated Picture House v Wednesbury Corporations [1948] 1 KB 223	
Minister for Immigration and Citizenship v Li [2013] HCA 18	
Consistency of treatmentErro	
Parramatta City Council v Pestell (1972) 128 CLR 305 Erro	
Edelsten v Wilcox (1988) 83 ALR 99	
Failure to make inquiries	
Prasad v Minister for Immigration and Ethnic Affairs (1985) 65 ALR 549	
Minister for Immigration and Citizenship v SZIAI (2009) 83 ALIR	
UNCERTAINTY	
King Gee Clothing Co Pty Ltd v Commonwealth (1945) 71 CLR 184	
Jee clothing co r ty Ltd v commonwealth (1545) r 1 cEN 104	J Booking ik not defilled.

Our Town FM Pty Ltd v Australian Broadcasting Tribunal (No 1) (1987) 16 FCR 465..... Error! Bookmark not

Television Corporation Ltd v Commonwealth (1963) 109 CLR 59  JURISDICTIONAL FACTS  Type 1: "objective" jurisdictional facts	Error! Bookmark not definedError! Bookmark not defined.
Corporation of the City of Enfield v Development Assessment Commissi not defined.  Timbers Protection Coelition Inc. V Page Mining NV (1900) 4C NSWI P.E.E.	
Timbarra Protection Coalition Inc v Ross Mining NL (1999) 46 NSWLR 55  Type 2: "subjective" jurisdictional facts	
JURISDICTIONAL ERROR	
Craig v State of South Australia (1995) 184 CLR 163 Kirk v Industrial Relations Commission of New South Wales (2010) 239 (	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Breach of Procedural Fairness	
Re Refugee Review Tribunal; Ex parte Aala (2000) 204 CLR 82	
Breach of Considerations Grounds	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Minister for Immigration and Multicultural Affairs v Yusuf (2001) 206 CL	
Wednesbury Unreasonableness	
Minister for Immigration and Citizenship v Li (2013) 249 CLR 332	
No Evidence	
Bookmark not defined.	
Breach of Statutory Requirements	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Project Blue Sky Inc v Australian Broadcasting Authority (1998) 194 CLR Wei v Minister for Immigration and Border Protection [2015] HCA 51	
TOPIC 9: JUDICIAL REVIEW REMEDIES	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Prerogative Remedies	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Certiorari	
Ainsworth v Criminal Justice Commission (1992) 175 CLR 564	
Hot Holdings Pty Ltd v Creasy (1996) 185 CLR 149 Wingfoot Australia Partners Pty Ltd v Kocak (2013) 252 CLR 480	
Craig v State of South Australia (1995) 184 CLR 163	
Prohibition	
Ainsworth v CJC (see above)	
Mandamus	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Ainsworth v CJC (see above)	
Habeus corpus	
Injunctions	
Declaration	
Bateman's Bay Land Council v Aboriginal Community Benefit Fund Enfield v Development Assessment Corporation	
Constitutional Writs	
Severance	
ADJR Act Remedies	
Remaking of Administrative Decisions	
Minister for Immigration and Multicultural Affairs v Bhardwaj (2002) 20  defined.	
Project Blue Sky Inc v Australian Broadcasting Authority (1998) 194 CLR	355 Error! Bookmark not defined.
TOPIC 10: PRIVATIVE CLAUSES	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
PRIVATIVE CLAUSES	
<i>R v Hickman; Ex p Fox</i> (1945) 70 CLR 598 <i>Plaintiff S157/2002 v Cth</i> (2003) 211 CLR 476	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Kirk v Industrial Relations Commission of New South Wales (2010) 239 (	
NO INVALIDITY CLAUSES	
Re Minister for Immigration Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs; Ex p P Bookmark not defined.	
Commissioner of Taxation v Futuris Corporation Limited (2008) 237 CLR	
TIME LIMIT CLAUSES	Error! Bookmark not defined.

Bodruddaza v Minister for Immigration & Multicultural Affairs (2007) 228 CLR 651	Error! Bookmark not
defined.	

# Topic 1: Introduction to Administrative Law

# Constitutional Fundamentals

The focus is on legal challenges to administrative decisions, where those decisions are usually made in the exercise of discretion

- "Decisions"
  - o Departmental and agency officials decisions of these officials can be challenged
  - Tribunals decisions of tribunals, who have authority to overturn initial decisions, can be challenged
  - Rules delegated legislation made by the Executive, a power conferred by Parliament, can be challenged
- "Discretion"
  - o choice between reasonable/legitimate alternatives

The core values of Administrative law are openness, participation, rationality and fairness.

# Separation of Powers

- Parliament has no power to invest judicial power in any hands other than those of Ch III courts (*Boilermakers Case*)
  - Exceptions: military tribunals, public service disciplinary tribunals, parliament to punish contempt of parliament
  - o Judicial power: imposing prison sentence, administrative detention of non-citizens (*Chu Kheng Lim; Al Kateb v Godwin*), Imposing a fine, Imposing a coercive order such as an injunction (*Brandy*), making a binding and conclusive declaration of the law
- Non-judicial functions cannot be exercised by Ch III courts unless it is incidental to judicial function
  - o Merits review is an Executive function, and thus cannot be exercised by the Courts
- *Kable* extends the doctrine of separation of powers to the states

#### Rule of Law and Constitutionalism

- Conceptual foundation of judicial review, which provides a measure of control of the Cth
- Role of the court is to enforce the law, not to judge the wisdom or propriety of government policy
- S75(v) Constitution creates an entrenched minimum of judicial review that the federal parliament cannot remove
- An analogous limitation is imposed on the power of state parliaments: Kirk v Industrial Court
  of NSW
  - There should be legal norms which are prospective, open and clear. It should not be impossible to comply with the norms. The making of norms should be guided by open, clear and fairly stable general norms. They should be applied and enforced correctly and consistently.

## Introduction to Judicial Review

• Judicial review is concerned with when the court will intervene to quash or otherwise remedy errors in administrative action

#### **Elements**

- 1. Does the court have jurisdiction?
- 2. Is the application justiciable?
- 3. Does the applicant have standing (appropriate person)?
- 4. Is a breach on one or more of the grounds of review established?
  - a. Procedural grounds
    - i. Hearing rule: person affected by decisions is given opportunity to be heard
    - ii. Bias
  - b. Reasoning process grounds
    - i. Decision-maker must consider relevant factors and disregard irrelevant factors
  - c. Decisional grounds
    - i. Decision-maker must have jurisdiction
    - ii. Wednesbury unreasonableness
- 5. Is a remedy available?

# Review/Appeal Distinction

#### Review Appeal Granted by statute for specified decisions Usually refers to judicial review by courts o Review is part of courts Scope of courts authority depends on the supervisory jurisdiction statute o Judicial review should not allow Remedy depends on the statute – make courts to impose ideas of 'good include substituting a decision (i.e a administration' on the executive merits appeal) o However, while it is clear that judicial review seeks to keep Examples: administrators within the legal Appeal from a planning decision of a boundaries of their power, the council to the Land and Environment boundaries can be unclear Court (Environmental Planning and because: the meaning of statute *Assessment Act* s97) is unclear, grounds of review are • Appeal from commissioner of LEC to a sufficiently abstract to be capable judge of the LEC (Land and Environment of different interpretations and Court Act s56A) applications Appeal from judge of LEC to the Supreme Inherent or statutory jurisdiction of the Court (Land and Environment Court Act courts Federal: HCA (Constitution), FCA (Constitution; *ADJR Act; Judiciary* Act) Focus on the grounds of judicial review Court may not substitute a decision (Phrryic victory) – only empowered to identify errors Court will quash decision and remit the

decision to the original decision maker

## Law/Merits distinction

- Legality: is the decision valid? Did the law permit the decision to be made in the first place? (Validity)
- Merits: is the decision correct? Did the decision maker make the correct decision? (Correctness)
- Judicial review is concerned with legality and not with the merits

# Attorney General (NSW) v Quin (1990) 170 CLR 1

**Facts:** NSW gov reorganized the magistracy. Q was a magistrate but was not recommended for reappointment. The A-G departed from the previous method of recommending magistrates and adopted a new policy. Q challenged the decision on the basis he had a real expectation to be reappointed.

Issue: Was the A-G entitled to challenge the policy of reappointment

Finding: Yes

Judgment: per Brennan J

- The duty and jurisdiction of the court to review administrative action goes no further than declaring and enforcing the law prescribing the limits and governing the exercise of the repository's power
- If, in so doing, the court avoids administrative injustice or error, so be it however, the court has no jurisdiction simply to cure administrative injustice or error
- The merits of administrative action, to the extent that they can be distinguished from legality, are for the repository of the relevant power alone
  - o 'To the extent that they can...' indicates that, in reality, the line between legality and merits may be less clear
  - o Thus, it was open for the government to change its policy and it is not for the court to overrule such a change
    - However, while Q was not entitled to hold the government to a particular policy, it may be argued that he should have had the right to be heard on the change of policy

# Topic 2: Merits Review

# Purpose of Merits Review

- De novo review of administrative power
- Purpose:
  - o Correct or preferable decision
  - o Improve the quality and consistency of government decision making
  - o Provide a mechanism of review that is cheap, informal and quick
  - o Openness and accountability of government
- Wider remedial powers (powers to make a substitute decision: s43(1)(c)(i) AAT Act)
- Creature of statute (no inherent or common law merits review)

# Types of Tribunals

A tribunal is the institution that provides merits review in Australia. They are statutory bodies that provide dispute resolution, primarily through adjudication.

#### Types:

- Civil/Appeals
  - o Civil: disputes between individuals
  - o Appeal/merits review: review of decision made by a government official
- Generalist/Specialist
  - o Generalist: may determine appeals in many different areas of law
  - o Specialist: tribunal hears appeals in a particular area (e.g RRT)
- Adversarial/Inquisitorial
  - o Adversarial: parties determine issues, collect and present evidence
  - o Inquisitorial: tribunal determines issues and collects evidence

Difference between a decision of a tribunal and a curial decision: *Re Drake and Minister for Immigration and Ethnic Affairs (No 2)* (1980)

- Policy
  - o Tribunal can take into account the possible application of administrative policy
  - o Court applies the relevant law to the facts
- Public objective
  - O Tribunal may have to balance achieving an objective of public significance, as articulated in a policy, and the interests of the individual
- Right
  - o Tribunal creates a right in or imposes a liability on an individual
  - o Court declares and enforces a right or liability antecedently created

# Independent Merits Review Tribunals

Defining characteristics of Administrative law in the 21<sup>st</sup> Century has been super tribunals, reviewing under large amounts of legislation.

## Administrative Appeals Tribunal (AAT)

#### Administrative Appeals Tribunal Act 1975 (Cth)

#### Key sections:

- 2A Objective: accessible, fair, just, economical, informal, quick, proportionate to importance and complexity of matter, promotes public trust and confidence in decision-making of AAT
- 25 Tribunal may review certain decisions: by enactment
- 27 Persons who may apply to Tribunal: whose interests are affected
- 28 Persons affected by decision may obtain reasons for decision
- 30 Parties to proceeding before Tribunal: duly applied, person who made decision, AG
- 33 Procedure: informal, accessible, quick, not bound by evidence law
- 35 Public hearings and orders for private hearings, non-publication and nondisclosure
- 37 Lodging of material docs with Tribunal: statement of findings
- 39 Submissions
- 43 Tribunal's decision on review: "step into shoes" of decision maker to affirm, vary, set-aside, substitute, remit
- 44 Appeals to FCA

#### Review:

- The AAT has jurisdiction to entertain an appeal from a decision in fact made, which *purported* to be made in exercise of powers under an enactment: *Collector of Customs v Brian Lawlor Automotive*; \$25
- Tribunal cannot rule on the constitutional validity of legislation: Re Adams

#### Collector of Customs (NSW) v Brian Lawlor Automotive (1979) 41 FLR 338

**Facts:** CC revoked warehouse license of BL which had previously been granted under *Customs Act*. BL argued that the Collector exceeded powers under license. AAT ordered cancellation to be set aside. Collector appealed to the FCA arguing that either 1) the collector did have power to revoke the license, or 2) if the collector did not have power to revoke the license, then the AAT had no jurisdiction to determine BL's application

**Issue:** Did the AAT have power to review the decision under s25(1) AAT Act

#### Finding: Yes

#### Reasoning: Bowen CJ

- A 'decision' refers to a decision in fact made, regardless of whether or not it is a legally effective decision
- 'Made in the exercise of powers conferred by that enactment' means made in purposed exercise of powers conferred by the enactment
  - o 'Purported exercise' includes the notion that the official may be making his decision on the basis that he is exercising powers conferred by the enactment, whether or not such powers are conferred as a matter of law
  - o Does not mean:

- In pursuance of a legally effective exercise of powers conferred by the enactment – this would leave a gap in accountability
- In the honest belief that it was in the exercise of powers conferred by the enactment introduces an inappropriate subjective element
- Here, there was a decision to revoke the license and this decision was purportedly made in the exercise of powers conferred by the Customs Act
  - o Rejected the Collector's argument that if he did not have the power to revoke the license, there was no decision and thus BLA cannot appeal it
  - o Even if the Court concludes that there was no power to make the decision and that the decision is a nullity, there is the ability to appeal the decision

#### Drake v Minister for Immigration and Ethnic Affairs (1979)

**Facts:** Decision for deportation of D pursuant to Migration Act under which Minister may upon expiration of a term of imprisonment, order deportation. D had been convicted of a drug offence. Under the statute there was no criteria for making the assessment (unstructured discretion). The Minister applied a policy statement, which asked 'in all the circumstances, is it in the best interests of Australia that the person be deported?' and listed matters. D appealed a decision of the AAT affirming the Ministers decision.

**Issue:** did the AAT attach such importance to the policy statement as to result in a failure to exercise independent judgment

#### Found: Yes

#### Judgment: Bowen CJ and Deane J

- Nature and function AAT
  - o Tribunal must decide whether the decision is the correct and preferable one
  - O The question is not whether the decision was the correct or preferable one on the material before the person who made it, but whether it was so on the material before the tribunal
    - Decision made on the facts at the time of the review, not at the time the decision was originally made
- Government policy
  - Ordinarily, an administrative officer will be entitled, in the absence of specifically defined criteria or considerations, to take into account government policy
    - Especially where there are no specified statutory criteria and where the power is entrusted to a Minister responsible to Parliament
  - Where it was permissible to take relevant government policy into account, but where the tribunal is not under a statutory duty to regard itself as bound by that policy, the tribunal is entitled to treat such government policy as a relevant factor in reviewing the decision
    - The Tribunal should make clear that it has considered the propriety of the policy and indicate the consideration that have led to its application
  - However, the tribunal is not, in the absence of specific statutory provision, entitled to abdicate its function of determining whether the decision made was, on the arterial before the tribunal, the correct or preferable one in favour of a function of merely determining whether the decision made conformed with whatever the relevant general government policy might be
    - An uncritical application of policy which represents an abdication is not permitted
  - Not desirable to attempt to frame any general statement of the precise part which government policy should ordinarily play in the determinations of the tribunal
    - That is a matter for the tribunal itself to determine in the context of the particular case and in the light of the need for compromise, in the interests of

good government, between the desirability of consistency in the treatment of citizens under the law and the ideal of justice in the individual case

**Principle:** The Tribunal's function when it undertakes a review of the Ministers decision is to form its own judgment of what is the correct or preferable decision in the circumstances of the particular case as revealed in the material before the Tribunal

#### Re Drake and Minister for Immigration and Ethnic Affairs (No 2) (1980) 2 ALD 634

**Facts:** Decision of the AAT on remittal to the AAT following appeal. At this point government had produced public policy stating reasons why government did not support violent types.

#### Found: per Brennan J

- Policy can cure inconsistency, facilitates decision-making, improves integrity of decision-making and diminishes the impact of individual predilections
- Policy is subject to Parliamentary scrutiny and are amenable to alternation or revocation
- A lawful policy 1) must be consistent with statute, 2) allow the minister to take into account relevant circumstances, 3) must not require them to take into account irrelevant circumstances and 4) must not serve a purpose foreign to the purpose for which the discretionary power was created (*Drake; Murphyores Inc v Cth*)
- A ministers discretion must not be so truncated by a policy as to preclude consideration of the merits. Policy must not allow minister to 'shut its ears to an application' applicants must be able to show why policy should be changed, or why it does not apply to them
- The Tribunal is as free as the Minister to apply or not apply the policy.
- When T is reviewing the exercise of a discretionary power reposed in a minister, and the minister had adopted a general policy to guide them in the exercise of the power, the T will ordinarily apply that policy in reviewing the decision, unless the policy is unlawful or unless its application tends to produce an unjust decision in the circumstances of the particular case.
- The tribunal must only cautiously depart from policy and cogent reasons must be shown.
- Policy does not fetter discretion, it merely identifies relevant factors to be considered and conduct which may gravely affect Australia's interests

## Shi v Migration Agents Registration Authority (2008) 235 CLR 286

**Facts:** MARA cancelled Shi's registration. Shi applied to the AAT, who stayed the cancellation decision and allowed Shi to continue working subject to conditions. Later AAT set aside MARA's decision and substituted a decision to caution Shi, however the AAT considered facts at the time of its decision (not only prior to MARA's decision)

Issue: Could the AAT take into account facts occurring after MARA's decision?

## Found: yes

#### Judgment: Kirby J

- Tribunal must base decisions on the state of evidence as it stood at the time of the decision, but on the circumstances prevailing at the date of the Tribunal's own decision
  - o Administrators are obliged to have regard to the most current information
  - o This approach is supported by nature & function of Tribunal; s43 purpose
- Circumstances may be adverse to an applicant before Tribunal e.g bankruptcy or criminal conviction for an offence of dishonesty
- Regard must be had to the enabling legislation in resolving whether the Tribunal has exceeded jurisdiction

#### Hayne and Heydon JJ:

- Generally, the Tribunal may have regard to information about conduct and events that occurred after the decision under review
- However if there is a statutory limitation that the decision be restricted to the material before the original decision-maker, it must be found in the legislation which empowered the primary

decision-maker to act (as there is nothing in the AAT Act that provides such a limitation)

• Here, the Migration Act did not fix a particular time as the point at which the agent's fitness to provide immigration assistance was to be assessed

#### Kiefel J

- The Tribunal is not limited to a supervisory role it is authorised and required to review the actual decision
- It is open to the Tribunal to have regard to evidence of conduct subsequent to the original decision

#### MZZW v Minister for Immigration and Border Protection [2015] FCAFC 133

**Facts:** Asylum seeker refused protection visa. RRT affirmed original decision. Decision was set aside in judicial review proceedings. When the case was remitted back to the RRT, it again affirmed original decision. MZZZW challenged decision on basis that the RRT failed its function as reasons were copied from the first decision.

**Issue:** Did the second RRT fail to perform its merits review function?

Found: Yes

#### Judgment: Full Court

- The Tribunal must decide the issue afresh and bring its own mind to bear on the issues. The
  Tribunal must be free from prejudgment, bias and the constraints on thought from the
  adoption of the conclusion of others and the way those conclusions have been formulated
  and framed in language
- Here the RRT did no consider the claim afresh, there was substantial and substantive
  adoption of the previous decisions reasons. The member had transposed the previous findings
  and language into her findings and language, but so as to appear as if she had formulated the
  finding

#### Principles:

"Within the limits of the applicable law, a new decision-maker brings her or his own perspectives, approach and reasoning to the claims made by an applicant for review"

"The Member will bring her own mind to bear on the issues arising in the review, freed not only from infections such as prejudgment or other bias but from the inevitable constraints on thought, consideration, and reflection which flow from the adoption of not only the conclusions of others, but the way those conclusions have been formulated and framed in language"

#### Zhau v Minister for Immigration (2015)

**Facts:** Zhao comes to Australia from China aged 17. Bought permanent visa to come and go from Australia for \$20K. Put in back of passport. The Passport control found false visa.

**Found:** Charged with breaching passport act – 10 years imprisonment/fines. However, not deported on grounds of charter witnesses, evidence of steady employment – discretion applied.